
 

 

1 

 

Becker County Planning Commission  1 

January 31st, 2024 2 

 3 

Members Present: Chairman David Blomseth, Jeff Moritz, Tom Disse, Kohl Skalin, County 4 

Commissioner Erica Jepson, Harvey Aho, Nick Bowers, Steve Lindow, Kim Mattson, 5 

Commissioner John Okeson, Craig Hall, Mary Seaberg, Tommy Ailie, and Zoning Director Kyle 6 

Vareberg. Members Absent: None 7 

  8 

Chairman David Blomseth called the Planning Commission meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 9 

Introductions were given. Becker County Zoning Technician Nicole Bradbury recorded the minutes. 10 

 11 

Harvey Aho made a motion to approve the minutes from the December 20th, 2023, meeting. 12 

Skalin second. All members in favor. Motion carried.  13 

 14 

Chairman David Blomseth explained the protocol for the meeting and stated that the 15 

recommendations of the Planning Commission will be forwarded to the County Board of 16 

Commissioners for final action.  17 

 18 

Blomseth stated that they were going to adjust the order of the applicants as there were many 19 

there to speak for applicant one (Mahube/Crotts). 20 

 21 

 22 

New Business: 23 

 24 

2. APPLICANT: Thomas J Wettels 28662 Co Hwy 37 Ponsford, MN 56575 Project 25 
Location: 28662 Co Hwy 37 Ponsford, MN 56575 LEGAL LAND DESCRIPTION: Tax 26 
ID Number: 25.0119.000 Section 35 Township 141 Range 038; 35-141-38 PT SW1/4 27 
NW1/4: COMM W QTR COR SEC 35. W 891.91' TO POB; N 1232.95', ELY 448.66', S 28 
1181.64', W 463.15' TO POB. APPLICATION AND DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: 29 
Request a Conditional Use Permit to operate a firearms business. 30 

 31 

 32 

Thomas Wettels presented the application and stated that he wanted to operate a firearms sale 33 

and gunsmithing business. 34 

 35 

Aho asked if the sales would be in-house, online, or both. 36 

 37 

Wettels said both as well as gun shows. 38 

 39 

Aho asked if he has a gun range there. 40 

 41 

Wettels said just for personal use. He stated that he is the President of the Osage Sportsman’s 42 

Club, so they do most of their shooting there.  43 

 44 

Lindow asked if there would be a gun range there with any shooting. 45 

 46 

Wettels said just for him personally.  47 



 

 

2 

 

 48 

As there was no one to speak for or against the application testimony closed. 49 

 50 

There was no written correspondence received in regard to this application. 51 

 52 

Skalin said it was a good location, and it won’t impact anyone. 53 

 54 

Ailie agreed and commented that there is good distance between this location and anyone else. 55 

 56 

 57 

MOTION: Seaberg motioned to approve the application as presented. Ailie second. 58 

Roll Call; All in favor. Motion carried. 59 

 60 

 61 

 62 

 63 

3. APPLICANT: Verizon on Becker County Land 915 Lake Ave Detroit Lakes, MN 56501 64 
Project Location: TBD E Bad Medicine Lake Rd Ponsford, MN 56575 LEGAL LAND 65 
DESCRIPTION: Tax ID Number: 12.7024.001 Section 03 Township 142 Range 037; 3-66 
142-37 PT SW1/4 NW1/4: COMM W QTR COR SEC 3, E 216.88 TO POB; E 340', N 67 
555.11', W 340', S 555.85'TO POB. APPLICATION AND DESCRIPTION OF 68 
PROJECT: Request a Conditional Use Permit to construct a two hundred and fifty (250) 69 
foot self-support cellular tower. 70 

 71 

 72 

Alex Trueman with Verizon presented the application and stated they wanted to amend the 73 

request from being a two hundred and fifty (250) foot self-support cellular tower to be a three 74 

hundred (300) foot tower in order to provide the largest amount of coverage possible. He stated 75 

the coverage in that area is terrible and with the increase in work and school from home it has 76 

put a lot of pressure on the demand for network. He also stated that the majority of emergency 77 

calls come from cell phones, and they have received complaints from people in that area not 78 

being able to call for help. He said emergency service response is a huge factor in this request. 79 

 80 

Seaberg asked about the Conditional Use Permit for a tower that was obtained for that area years 81 

ago. 82 

 83 

Trueman said he doesn’t know all the details as to what happened but explained that request 84 

came through a partnership with another company, where this is coming directly from Verizon. 85 

He also explained complications with fiber optics and setbacks back then and how things have 86 

changed since that time. 87 

 88 

Lindow asked what the communications reach will be. 89 

 90 

Trueman said it will be a massive increase. 91 

 92 

Lindow asked if he thought it would be around five (5) miles. 93 

 94 



 

 

3 

 

Trueman said it would be several miles. 95 

 96 

Lindow mentioned that a lot of people hunt to the North of the road and asked if the coverage 97 

will extend through the woods. 98 

 99 

Trueman said yes. 100 

 101 

Danny Smith asked where on State Highway 113 this is located. 102 

 103 

Skalin said East Bad Medicine Lake Road. 104 

 105 

Leslie Fleischman spoke and said she agrees with this request. She stated there have been several 106 

emergencies over the years and no cell signal. She shared about two (2) incidents, one involving 107 

a fire and another a medical emergency where she had to drive to Holmer Road to get a signal 108 

and call for help. 109 

 110 

As there was no one else to speak for or against the application, testimony closed. 111 

 112 

There was one letter received in regard to this application and is entered below: 113 



 

 

4 

 

 114 



 

 

5 

 

 115 
 116 

 117 

 118 

 119 

Skalin said he has a cabin in the dead zone. He said last year a hunter got shot and emergency 120 

services had a hard time finding him because they couldn’t triangulate a signal. He commented 121 

that if an all-terrain vehicle breaks down, people cannot call for help. He said this does a service 122 

to the whole area. 123 

 124 

Hall agreed. 125 

 126 



 

 

6 

 

Seaberg said for the request a few years ago emergency response time was a big issue. 127 

 128 

 129 

 130 

 131 

MOTION: Hall motioned to approve the application with the amended height of 132 

three hundred (300) feet. Aho second.  133 

 134 

Vareberg asked that they include the findings below and stated that in terms of a public water 135 

setback the ordinance states that no tower facility shall be established within a half-mile of a 136 

public water. While this is outside of the shoreland area there is a public body of water within a 137 

half-mile of it. He said it is allowed if there is a finding created and would just say that the 138 

finding is that Verizon is not capable of providing this enhancement in this dead-zone area while 139 

meeting that half-mile setback from any public water. 140 

 141 



 

 

7 

 

 142 



 

 

8 

 

 143 



 

 

9 

 

 144 
 145 



 

 

10 

 

 146 
 147 

Hall and Aho accepted the findings to be included with the motion and second. Roll 148 

Call; All in favor. Motion carried. 149 

 150 

 151 

 152 

 153 

1. APPLICANT: MAHUBE-OTWA Community Action Partnership on behalf of 154 
Bernard D Crotts 44570 School House Rd Osage, MN 56570 Project Location: 23662 155 
Bernies Rd Osage, MN 56570 LEGAL LAND DESCRIPTION: Tax ID Number: 156 
28.0176.000 Section 27 Township 140 Range 038; 27-140-38 NW1/4 NE1/4 LESS E 25 AC 157 
(28-176-1, 28-176-4). APPLICATION AND DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT: Request a 158 
Conditional Use Permit for a non-shoreland multi-unit development consisting of eight (8) 159 
units. 160 

 161 

 162 

Liz Kuoppala with MAHUBE presented the application. She stated that before the meeting they 163 

were made aware of an MPCA violation at the property but asked that everyone present still be 164 

able to give testimony, and then they would table to get more information on the violation. 165 

 166 

Blomseth said she is able to table at any time. 167 

 168 

Kuoppala and Dan Josephson shared the history of MAHUBE’s work with veterans and how this 169 

project came to be.  170 

 171 

There was discussion on the screening process, staffing, and transportation. 172 

 173 

Many neighbors spoke and shared concerns about the road in the winter as it is the last to get 174 

plowed, concerns with hunters and PTSD, the affect on wildlife, concerns with the property 175 

owner’s understanding of this project, the amount of law enforcement calls to that property, the 176 

distance from emergency services, transportation outside of normal operating hours, and access 177 

to the property. 178 

 179 

Many letters were received before the meeting. Those were not read again but are entered below 180 

along with letters that were read during the meeting. 181 

 182 

 183 



 

 

11 

 

 184 
 185 



 

 

12 

 

 186 
 187 



 

 

13 

 

 188 
 189 



 

 

14 

 

 190 
 191 

 192 

 193 

 194 
 195 



 

 

15 

 

 196 

 197 
 198 

 199 



 

 

16 

 

 200 



 

 

17 

 

 201 



 

 

18 

 

 202 



 

 

19 

 

 203 



 

 

20 

 

 204 



 

 

21 

 

 205 



 

 

22 

 

 206 



 

 

23 

 

 207 



 

 

24 

 

 208 



 

 

25 

 

 209 



 

 

26 

 

 210 
 211 



 

 

27 

 

 212 
 213 



 

 

28 

 

 214 
 215 

 216 



 

 

29 

 

 217 
 218 



 

 

30 

 

 219 
 220 

 221 
 222 



 

 

31 

 

 223 



 

 

32 

 

 224 
 225 

 226 

 227 
 228 



 

 

33 

 

 229 
 230 

 231 
 232 



 

 

34 

 

 233 
 234 

 235 

 236 



 

 

35 

 

 237 



 

 

36 

 

 238 



 

 

37 

 

 239 



 

 

38 

 

 240 



 

 

39 

 

 241 



 

 

40 

 

 242 



 

 

41 

 

 243 
 244 



 

 

42 

 

 245 
 246 

 247 
 248 



 

 

43 

 

 249 



 

 

44 

 

 250 
 251 

 252 
 253 

 254 
 255 



 

 

45 

 

 256 

 257 
 258 



 

 

46 

 

 259 
 260 

 261 
 262 



 

 

47 

 

 263 
 264 

 265 

 266 
 267 

 268 



 

 

48 

 

 269 
 270 

 271 
 272 



 

 

49 

 

 273 
 274 

 275 
 276 

 277 
 278 



 

 

50 

 

 279 



 

 

51 

 

 280 
 281 



 

 

52 

 

 282 



 

 

53 

 

 283 



 

 

54 

 

 284 



 

 

55 

 

 285 
 286 



 

 

56 

 

 287 
 288 



 

 

57 

 

 289 



 

 

58 

 

 290 
 291 

 292 

The applicant tabled the application. 293 

 294 

 295 

*Since the January 31st, 2024, Hearing, this application has been withdrawn* 296 

 297 

 298 



 

 

59 

 

 299 

 300 

Other Business: 301 

 302 

I) Tentative Date for Next Informational Meeting: February 21st, 2024; 8:00 am; 3rd Floor 303 

Meeting Room in the Becker County Courthouse, Detroit Lakes, MN. 304 

 305 

 306 

Since there was no further business to come before the Board, Aho made a motion to 307 

adjourn. Hall second. All in favor. Motion carried. The meeting adjourned at 8:03 pm.  308 

 309 

 310 

________________________________                ________________________________ 311 

David Blomseth, Chairman    Jeff Moritz, Secretary 312 

 313 

ATTEST 314 

      _______________________________________ 315 

          Kyle Vareberg, Zoning Administrator  316 


